
 

 

 
RIVERDALE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

CIVIC CENTER - 4600 S. WEBER RIVER DR.  
TUESDAY –APRIL 17, 2012 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Riverdale City Council held Tuesday, April 17, 
2012 at 6:04 PM at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber River Drive. 
 
Members Present: Bruce Burrows, Mayor  

Don Hunt, Councilor 
 Norm Searle, Councilor 
   Alan Arnold, Councilor 
   Michael Staten, Councilor 
 Braden Mitchell, Councilor   
 
Others Present: Larry Hansen, City Administrator; Dave Hansen, Police Chief, 

Steve Brooks, City Attorney; Shawn Douglas, Public Works 
Director; Lynn Fortie, Business Administrator; Ember Herrick, 
City Recorder and 15 members of the public:  Stan Hadden, Paula 
Price, Charles Kerkvliet, Aaron Nies, David Leahy, Jane Hall, 
Curtis Jones, Amy Wright, Annette Higgs, Amy Mikkelsen, Joe 
Porter, Ammon Porter, Kevin Higgs, Jaunett Porter, and Jodi 
Brown.   

 
A.  Welcome & Roll Call  
Mayor Burrows called the meeting to order and welcomed all in attendance including all 
the Council members, staff, honorees and the members of the public.   
 
B.  Pledge of Allegiance  
Mayor Burrows led the Pledge of Allegiance and read a quote from the Patriot’s 
Handbook by Alexis de Tocqueville who said how remarkable Americans were at the 
nation’s inception to love their new county and share an interest in the affairs of state by 
playing an active role in the formation of their society.   
 
C.  Moment of Silence    
Mayor Burrow’s quote was followed by a moment of silence when he asked everyone to 
remember those serving in our armed forces.  
 
D.  Open Communications   
Mayor Burrows invited any member of the public with questions or concerns to address 
the Council.  
 
Riverdale Resident Jane Hall said she would like to see the city’s continued involvement 
in Communities That Care (CTC) because in her opinion an ounce of prevention is worth 
a pound of cure.  Ms. Hall said she worked with teenagers in her job at Roy High School 
for years and through her church has experience teaching incarcerated young men and 
she believes anything the city can do to help young people is good.  She said she hopes 



 

 

the Riverdale City Council will vote to continue supporting CTC and will join with other 
cities to be proactive in addressing community issues.   
 
There were no additional comments. 
 
E.  Presentations and Reports 
Mayor Burrows told the Council that the Utah Transit Authority (UTA) is hosting a local 
academy for public officials on May 12, 2012 from 7:30 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. at the Jordan 
River Light Rail Center.  He said any Council members interested in attending should tell 
City Administrator Larry Hansen to reserve a spot for them.   
 
Mayor Burrows asked the members of the Riverdale City Band to stand and be 
recognized as he read a proclamation honoring them.  Band Representative Jaunett Porter 
accepted an award on behalf of the band and said she loves Riverdale City and is proud to 
contribute to the hometown feel of our city through music.   Mayor Burrows asked her to 
convey the city’s appreciation to the other band members not able to attend tonight’s 
meeting.   
 
Mr. Hansen said the state wide Shake Out Drill held earlier in the day was a good training 
opportunity for members of the city.  He said staff combined the earthquake drill with a 
fire drill and training on how to use the Automatic External Defibrillator AED.  Mr. 
Hansen said involving volunteers in the CERT program to help educate the community 
about emergency preparedness could be beneficial for future training purposes.   
 
Mr. Hansen said the city contracted with a professional company to cleanup a hazmat 
spill that started at a local business and emptied into the Weber River in February 2012.  
According to Mr. Hansen, that local business assumed responsibility for the hazmat spill 
and has reimbursed the city for the cost of the cleanup.  He referred the Council to the 
department reports for information about incidents happening throughout the month.  
 
Mayor Burrows and Mr. Hansen honored city employees Sergeant Curtis Jones with 10 
years and Amy Wright with five years of service to the city.  Ms. Wright said she thinks 
there are a lot of great people who work for Riverdale City and she loves her job.  Sgt. 
Jones said he has lived in Riverdale for the majority of his life and enjoys working for 
Police Chief Dave Hansen because he really cares about his employees.  He thanked the 
Council for their support of staff through the wages and benefits they approve each year 
and he said as a city employee he tries to show his appreciation daily by performing his 
job duties to the best of his ability.     
 
Mr. Hansen said the city is current operating under FTE authorization as part of the 2005 
action plan and he thanked city staff for their exemplary service to the citizens of 
Riverdale.   
 
Stan Hadden presented the Weber Mosquito Abatement District’s 65th Annual Report for 
2011.  He said that he has served the city for 40 years, as a former Council member and 
now as the city’s representative on the mosquito abatement board for the past eight years.  
Mr. Hadden said ponds create breeding grounds for mosquitoes and at this time of the 
year the mosquitoes have hatched and are still in the water.  He said the district’s 



 

 

response to the dangerous conditions created by last spring’s flooding was impressive.   
According to Mr. Hadden, years ago the district purchased its own aircraft and contracted 
with a full-time pilot who he said works 16 to 18 hours a day spraying during the 
mosquito season.  According to Mr. Hadden, this investment has paid off as there were 
no cases of West Nile virus reported in Weber County in 2011, not even in the equine 
population while there were thousands of cases in Colorado.  He said at a recent training 
he learned about the seriousness of some of the diseases mosquitoes carry and the 
importance of preventing their spread to humans and he asked the Council for any 
questions.  Councilor Searle thanked Mr. Hadden for his service and the effectiveness of 
the district’s mosquito abatement program, stating that he didn’t remember being bit by a 
mosquito last year.  Mr. Hadden said the district sprayed heavily and was able to dodge a 
bullet after the flooding.   
 
Business Administrator Lynn Fortie gave the Mayor and Council a report on the 
condition of the treasury for the month ending March 31, 2012 stating that in the General 
Fund there were Class C road funds and a bond payment for the senior facility.  He asked 
for any questions about the treasury report and there were none.   
 
F. Consent Items 
Mayor Burrows asked if there were any changes to the meeting minutes and none were 
noted.     
 
Mayor Burrows asked for any questions about the Community Development Projects 
Status Report and there were none.   
 
There were also no comments or questions on the Recorder’s Report.   
 

Motion:    Councilor Hunt moved to approve the consent items.  Councilor 
Searle seconded the motion.   

 
Call the Question:  The motion passed unanimously. 

G. Action Items 

1. Consideration of Resolution 2012-2 adopting a new interlocal agreement for 
Communities That Care (CTC).  

Mayor Burrows said the first action item is a request from CTC for Riverdale City to sign 
a new interlocal agreement with ongoing financial obligations for the city.  CTC 
Coordinator Amy Mikkelsen said she is here to update the Council on their progress and 
the federal Drug Free Communities Grant the group has applied for which will require 
matching contributions from the participating cities both in financial contributions and 
volunteer hours.  Ms. Mikkelsen said the grant is a federal five year grant where CTC can 
apply for up to $125,000 per year to be used for prevention in the community.  She said 
March 22, 2012 was the deadline to apply for the grant, the announcement of who gets 
the grant will be in August 2012 and the money will be distributed in September 2012.  
According to Ms. Mikkelsen, the federal Drug Free Communities Grant has a 100% 
match required from the group receiving the grant.  She said CTC has amended the 
interlocal agreement to read that each of the four cities will make an annual financial 



 

 

contribution equal to the amount they paid the first year the process was established, a 
$2,000 annual contribution by Riverdale City.   Ms. Mikkelsen said the interlocal 
agreement calls for a financial contribution for five additional years from Riverdale City 
if CTC gets this federal grant and for two additional years if CTC is not successful in 
securing a grant.  According to Ms. Mikkelsen, CTC will be funded through partnerships 
with businesses in the participating communities and relying on volunteers to create a 
long-term solution for funding and staffing the process.  She said CTC applied for 
approximately $70,000 this year but plans to apply for the $125,000 maximum amount of 
the grant for the next four years.  Councilor Staten asked about the matching grant 
requirements and Ms. Mikkelsen said when CTC asked Riverdale for a one time financial 
payment of $2,000 in 2011 they hadn’t researched the federal grant and didn’t realize it 
would require matching funds from the participating communities each year.  Councilor 
Staten asked what will happen to the CTC process at the end of the two or five year 
periods.  Ms. Mikkelsen said the grant can be applied for a second time for a total of 10 
years of federal funding or it could be sustained through partnerships with local 
businesses and residents volunteering their time and money.   
 
Councilor Staten said CTC will be a long-term commitment for the city and he asked Ms. 
Mikkelsen as the process coordinator what has been accomplished in the last year.  Ms. 
Mikkelsen said since December 2011 a CTC work group has been evaluating the data 
from Riverdale, South Ogden, Washington Terrace and Uintah compiled by the state of 
Utah from their Sharp Surveys.  She said the work group identified alcohol, tobacco, 
marijuana and prescription drugs as four commonly abused substances by youth in this 
area.  Councilor Staten asked about the Sharp Survey and Ms. Mikkelsen said the State of 
Utah partners with school districts to survey youth every two years and CTC requested 
the numbers for the Bonneville Cone to determine what substances youth in our area are 
abusing.  Councilor Staten clarified that CTC did not conduct the study and Ms. 
Mikkelsen said CTC has set up six work groups each with their own responsibilities and 
one group took the Sharp Survey data and interpreted it for the Bonneville Cone.   
 
Ms. Mikkelsen said CTC received a $500 donation from Weber Human Services for 
“Kick Butts Day” which they used to educate youth about smoking advertising and to 
reward them with a school dance for signing a commitment not to smoke.   
 
Councilor Hunt said his concern in amending the current interlocal is that the new draft 
requires the expenditure of funds and it was his understanding the Council cannot do this 
without giving the public an opportunity to review the request and comment on it at a 
public hearing.  Mayor Burrows said several council member who voted in favor of 
giving a one time donation to CTC in April 2011 expressed concern about committing 
Riverdale and future City Councils to ongoing funding obligations.  He said the interlocal 
automatically renews annually unless one of the parties gives 90 days notice to terminate 
their participation based on one of the provisions provided for in the agreement.  Mayor 
Burrows said CTC would need to give written notice of their desire to terminate their 
current interlocal with Riverdale City if they want new provisions stipulating an ongoing 
financial obligation for Riverdale to fund CTC for two to five additional years.  Ms. 
Mikkelsen said the other three cities who have signed the interlocal treated the proposed 
changes as an amendment to the existing agreement and have already voted to adopt the 
changes.  Mayor Burrows said he can’t speak to how other cities spend their resident’s 



 

 

taxpayer dollars, but in Riverdale the Council can’t commit funds unless there is first a 
public hearing or the expense is part of the city’s annual budget where the public has an 
opportunity to review and comment on it.  He said the budget must be approved by July 
1, 2012 so rather than holding a separate public hearing, it would make more sense for a 
CTC funding request to be added as a line item to the proposed 2012-2013 budget to be 
evaluated by the Council in May and by residents at a public hearing in June 2012.  Mr. 
Brooks said the City Council can only appropriate public funds1 after allowing a period 
for public comment and then once approved the city is obligated to regularly evaluate the 
net value received for any money appropriated to be measured on a project-by-project 
basis over the life of the project.2  Ms. Mikkelsen asked that Riverdale City consider 
CTC’s funding request as part of their upcoming budget process.   
 
Councilor Hunt asked Ms. Mikkelsen what benchmarks have been met by CTC in the last 
year and what value the city has received for their initial $2,000 investment.  He said he 
believes in exchanging value for value and isn’t confident taxpayer money is being used 
properly in the funding of this social program because of the way CTC has been run up to 
this point.  Ms. Mikkelsen said she has communicated directly with Mayor Burrows and 
Councilor Arnold as the city’s former appointed CTC representative but she said without 
Riverdale’s regular participation at meetings it has been difficult to show what CTC is 
accomplishing and to get Riverdale’s input.  She said she is open to suggestions from the 
Council on how she can work with Riverdale City better in the future.  Councilor Arnold 
said as the Council’s CTC Representative he couldn’t miss work to attend their daytime 
meetings but he believes the CTC process is great and he would be willing to support 
ongoing funding of the process if it were included in the next budget.  He said Riverdale 
City Lieutenant James Ebert has attended several CTC meetings and reported back to the 
Council his concerns that the management of the process is not professional and the 
group seems to have trouble accomplishing tasks in a timely manner.  Councilor Arnold 
said before Old Glory Days last year someone dropped off a CTC banner at his home the 
night before and expected him to man a booth to educate the public about the program.  

                                                 
1 RCC 1-9-7 “Gifts and donations made from the city to outside groups or interests are 
strongly discouraged and shall be subject to and handled according to the provisions set 
forth in Utah Code Annotated section 10-8-2, concerning the appropriation of public 
funds.”   
 
2 Utah State Code 10-8-2 (3) “It is considered a corporate purpose to appropriate 
money for any purpose that, in the judgment of the municipal legislative body, provides 
for the safety, health, prosperity, moral well-being, peace, order, comfort, or convenience 
of the inhabitants of the municipality subject to the following: 

(a) The net value received for any money appropriated shall be measured on a 
project-by-project basis over the life of the project. 
(b) The criteria for a determination under this Subsection (3) shall be established 
by the municipality's legislative body. A determination of value received, made by 
the municipality's legislative body, shall be presumed valid unless it can be shown 
that the determination was arbitrary, capricious, or illegal.  
(c) The municipality may consider intangible benefits received by the municipality 
in determining net value received. 

 



 

 

He said he didn’t feel prepared or qualified to take on this responsibility without any 
direction from CTC.  Councilor Arnold said he has also felt bullied by members of CTC 
who have pressured him to miss work to attend their meetings and have communicated 
that they would prefer a member of the City Council instead of Lt. Ebert as a Riverdale 
City Representative.  He said Lt. Ebert is an expert with training in law enforcement and 
substance abuse well qualified to serve as a representative for the city.  Councilor Arnold 
said he is tired of hearing from CTC that Riverdale isn’t participating in the discussion 
when Lt. Ebert regularly attends the meetings.  Ms. Mikkelsen apologized to Councilor 
Arnold if members of CTC made him feel bullied and she said the group needs to act 
professionally to gain credibility.  She said Lt. Ebert has been to a couple of meetings 
since she started her job as the coordinator in April 2011.  Mayor Burrows said Lt. Ebert 
and Councilor Searle both plan to attend CTC’s next meeting.  Councilor Arnold said 
although he is no longer the appointed Council Representative, he would like at least one 
meeting a quarter held at night to give people who work during the day a chance to attend 
and participate.   
 
Councilor Staten said a woman from CTC called him a few months ago to ask him to 
support CTC and he said he first needed to understand what the process is designed to do.  
He said as a professional engineering consultant in his job he needs to know what the 
deliverables are and that holds true when a group like CTC is asking for his support 
where city funds and resources are being invested.  He said he understands the process is 
still new, but as it becomes more established he needs to be able to explain to his 
constituents why their tax dollars are being used to fund the process and what kind of a 
return they are getting for their investment.   
 
Weber Human Services’ Paula Price said Tooele and Brigham City have both received 
grant funding for CTC and serve as success stories and examples of what CTC can 
accomplish in two to five years.  She commended Ms. Mikkelsen for the progress she has 
made in moving the CTC process forward and said that the group didn’t understand the 
federal grant’s match requirements when they first asked the four participating cities for a 
one time donation to get the process started.  She said trainings with all the key leaders 
present addressing a common issue and working towards a solution is the ultimate goal 
but with four cities this can be a challenge.  Ms. Price said she wants Riverdale to be 
involved in CTC.   
 
Councilor Hunt said just like CTC has a process, so does Riverdale City and the Council 
is bound by ordinance to only appropriate city funds after a public hearing and then they 
are obligated to regularly evaluate the process to ensure that measurable benchmarks are 
being met.  Councilor Staten said he still doesn’t feel his question was answered about 
what risk factor CTC has indentified and how they plan to address problem areas to 
create measurable changes.  Ms. Price said CTC plans to educate parents and incentivize 
them to use community resources to address youth risk factors identified in the state’s 
Sharp Survey.  Ms. Price said one issue identified as contributory to delinquent behavior 
was parental attitudes and CTC in other parts of the state has addressed this issue with a 
parenting program so that they could measure changes in attitudes over time.  She said 
other CTC groups have also implemented an anti-bullying program which could be 
measured for its effectiveness over time.  Councilor Staten asked if the proposed 
programs tried in other parts of the state were mandatory or voluntary and Ms. Price said 



 

 

the parenting program was voluntary and the bullying program was taught in the schools.  
Councilor Searle asked where these programs were implemented and Ms. Price said 
Tooele and Brigham City.  She said CTC wants to make their process sustainable over 
time through grants and community donations.   
 
Councilor Mitchell asked Ms. Mikkelsen if Riverdale’s annual contribution could 
increase if CTC can’t secure funding elsewhere to match the $120,000 federal grant 
amount they intend to apply for in successive years.  Ms. Mikkelsen said CTC would not 
ask Riverdale for more than $2,000 a year and would get additional funding through 
donations from the business community to meet the commitments of the matching grant.  
Mayor Burrows asked what businesses CTC had received commitments from for future 
donations and Ms. Mikkeslen said she was not aware of any businesses that have 
officially committed resources.  She said CTC Key Leaders are currently contacting 
business owners to secure partners and funding for CTC.   Councilor Mitchell asked if the 
matching contributions could be volunteer service hours and Ms. Mikkelsen confirmed 
that is the case with this federal grant.  Councilor Mitchell said he understands the CTC 
process has only been running in the Bonneville Cone region for a year now and it is 
understandable that it will take the group some time to get up to speed but he said the city 
takes the interlocal agreements they enter into seriously.  He said he would support 
funding CTC as part of the 2012-2013 budget process.   
 
Councilor Staten said when he was elected to the City Council he was contacted by many 
different groups asking for his support, including CTC.  He said his experience with CTC 
has been similar to Councilor Arnold’s where he has felt pressured to support the process 
and that statements he has made to members of CTC have been misrepresented.  
Councilor Staten said he will make an effort to become better educated about CTC but he 
warned Ms. Mikkelsen that the cause she represents is being tainted by the tactics of 
some well-meaning but misguided CTC members.  Ms. Mikkelsen apologized for the 
behavior of CTC members and said she would address the Council’s concerns with their 
tactics at a future coalition meeting.   
 
Councilor Staten said he doesn’t want a PR pitch or studies that tell him things that he 
already knows, but he does need to be sold on the real value of the CTC process before 
he will be comfortable committing taxpayer dollars to it.  He said Ms. Mikkelsen’s 
statements that CTC won’t ask Riverdale for additional financial obligations in the future 
isn’t convincing because last year CTC representatives claimed Riverdale would only 
need to make a one time $2,000 donation to the program and a year later they are asking 
for two to five years of additional funding.  Councilor Staten said he views tax money 
taken from Riverdale residents as a trust the Council is obligated to spend responsibly for 
causes that have measurable benefits for the community.  He said to date he hasn’t seen 
deliverables that make him want to support CTC moving forward.  According to 
Councilor Staten, the Community Assessment prepared by CTC advocates more 
community involvement but doesn’t address problem parents that are at the root of 
delinquent juvenile behavior.  Ms. Mikkelsen said community involvement could foster 
the education of parents to teach them how to talk to their kids about risk factors 
identified for youth in our community.   She said it is important that children get the same 
message from the community that they are getting at home.  Ms. Mikkelsen asked what 



 

 

information the Council needs to add CTC funding to their next budget and Councilor 
Arnold said the City Attorney and City Administrator can walk her through the process.   
  
 Motion: Councilor Arnold moved to table Resolution 2012-2 

adopting a new interlocal agreement for Communities That 
Care (CTC).  Councilor Hunt seconded the motion.   

There was no discussion on the motion.   

 Call the Question:  The motion passed unanimously. 

Mayor Burrows said Council and staff representatives from Riverdale have 
communicated to him that they plan to attend the next CTC meeting.     

 
2. Consideration of awarding contract on bid for Flood Protection 

Improvement Project #1 Storm Drain Outlet Box Modification in the amount 
of $11,766.00 to RL Shaw. 

 
Public Works Director Shawn Douglas said this improvement project will address future 
flooding and prevent water from backing up with a permanent storm drain system that 
works more efficiently than the make-shift modifications the public works department 
put in place during the flooding event in the spring of 2011.  He asked the Mayor and 
Council for any questions about the proposed project and Councilor Staten asked if 
Riverdale has worked with the contractor RL Shaw in the past.  Mr. Douglas said 
Riverdale has hired RL Shaw to do work, primarily as a subcontractor, and to date the 
city has had good experiences and been satisfied with the work the contractors have 
performed.      
 

Motion: Councilor Arnold moved to award the contract on bid for 
Flood Protection Improvement Project #1 Storm Drain 
Outlet Box Modification in the amount of $11,766.00 to 
RL Shaw.  Councilor Searle seconded the motion.   

 
Mayor Burrows asked for discussion on the motion and there was none.   
 

 Roll Call Vote: Councilor Mitchell, aye; Councilor Staten, aye; Councilor 
Hunt, aye; Councilor Searle, aye; and Councilor Arnold, 
aye. The motion passed unanimously.   

      
3. Consideration of awarding contract on bid for Flood Protection 

Improvement Project #2 Irrigation Diversion Box on 4400 South 
Street in the amount of $24,607.00 to Cornerstone Excavation.   

 
Mr. Douglas said the irrigation diversion box will allow residents with irrigation rights to 
continue using water while protecting properties along the irrigation canal system from 
flooding.  He said his department dammed this section to prevent flooding last spring and 
a permanent diversion box should serve as a good long-term solution for the city.   
 



 

 

 Motion: Councilor Searle moved to award the contract on bid for 
Flood Protection Improvement Project #2 Irrigation 
Diversion Box on 4400 South Street in the amount of 
$24,607.00 to Cornerstone Excavation.  Councilor Arnold 
seconded the motion.   

There was no discussion on the motion.   

 Roll Call Vote: Councilor Staten, aye; Councilor Hunt, aye; Councilor 
Searle, aye; Councilor Arnold, aye; and Councilor Mitchell, 
aye. The motion passed unanimously.     

4. Consideration of approval to use RiverRestoration.org to obtain 
project engineering design for Failed Bank Stabilization along the 
Weber River Trail Project.   

Mr. Douglas said RiverRestoration specializes in repairing damage done by river 
flooding to nature trails.  He said he has looked at the work they have performed for 
Ogden City and feels comfortable in contracting with them to complete the project 
engineering designs required before Riverdale City can secure FEMA funding to do the 
trail repair work.  Councilor Hunt asked if there is a standard to evaluate if 
RiverResotration’s pricing is competitive and Councilor Staten said he reviewed the bid 
included in the packet and in his professional opinion as an Engineer he didn’t identify 
any price gouging.  Mr. Douglas said permits will also need to be secured with the Army 
Corps of Engineers and a geographical survey of the area will need to be performed.  
Councilor Staten asked if the costs are exact and Mr. Douglas said the $32,276.00 
amount is a not-to-exceed amount and should be sufficient unless the scope of the work 
were to change.  Mr. Douglas said FEMA has approved this project and there are two 
additional projects he is in the process of securing for FEMA approval and funding.   
 

Motion: Councilor Staten moved to use RiverRestoration.org to obtain 
project engineering design for Pathway Collapse along the Weber 
River Trail Project not to exceed amount $32,276.00.  Councilor 
Hunt seconded the motion.   

 
There was no discussion on the motion.   

 Roll Call Vote: Councilor Hunt, aye; Councilor Searle, aye; Councilor 
Arnold, aye; Councilor Mitchell, aye; and Councilor Staten, 
aye. The motion passed unanimously.   

5. Consideration of approval to use RiverRestoration.org to obtain 
project engineering design for Riverdale Kayak Park, Grade Control 
and Riprap Failure. 

 
Mr. Douglas said the Kayak Park Project hasn’t been approved by FEMA yet but his 
department is in active negotiations and he is hopeful it will be approved shortly.  Mayor 
Burrows suggested the Council motion stipulate that approval of this funding request is 
subject to FEMA funding approval.   
 



 

 

Motion: Councilor Arnold moved to use RiverRestoration.org to obtain 
project engineering design for Riverdale Kayak Park, Grade 
Control and Riprap Failure subject to FEMA approval not to 
exceed amount $43,565.00.  Councilor Mitchell seconded the 
motion.   

 
There was no discussion on the motion.   

 

 Roll Call Vote: Councilor Searle, aye; Councilor Arnold, aye; Councilor 
Mitchell, aye; Councilor Staten, aye; and Councilor Hunt, 
aye. The motion passed unanimously.  

   

6. Consideration of approval to use RiverRestoration.org to obtain 
project engineering design for Weber River Trail Bank Erosion in the 
area East of the Woods subdivision at approximately 4275 South.  

 
Mr. Douglas said he is also in the process of securing FEMA funding for this bank 
stabilization project and he anticipates it will be an additional two or three weeks.   
 

Motion: Councilor Searle moved to use RiverRestoration.org to obtain 
project engineering design for Weber River Trail Bank Erosion in 
the area east of the Woods subdivision at approximately 4275 
South subject to FEMA approval and not to exceed amount 
$16,746.00.  Councilor Arnold seconded the motion.   

 
There was no discussion on the motion.   

 

Roll Call Vote: Councilor Arnold, aye; Councilor Mitchell, aye; Councilor 
Staten, aye; and Councilor Hunt, aye; and Councilor Searle, 
aye. The motion passed unanimously.   

H. Discretionary Items  
Mayor Burrows asked if there were any discretionary items and Councilor Arnold said he 
had received some resident complaints about Wal-Mart shopping carts abandoned along 
the washed out area of the city’s trail and old carpets dumped into the river.  Mr. Douglas 
said the Public Works Department employees will haul the carts back to Wal-Mart and 
look at disposing of the discarded carpet.   
 
Councilor Mitchell said residents have complained to him about too many families 
residing in one dwelling and he asked if the city has an ordinance addressing this issue.  
Mr. Hansen said the city does have an ordinance stipulating how many unrelated persons 
can live in one dwelling and he asked Councilor Mitchell to let the Community 
Development Director Randy Daily know if Riverdale’s Code Enforcement Officer needs 
to investigate specific complaints.   



 

 

Councilor Staten said he had been contacted by a resident upset because Riverdale’s 
Animal Control Officer Bonnie Jones had issued her a citation for crossing South Weber 
Drive with her dog off leash even though she was in an agricultural zone.  Police Chief 
Dave Hansen said he has encouraged Officer Jones to implement a zero tolerance policy 
ticketing all owners of dogs off leashes in the city.  Councilor Staten said he isn’t 
criticizing law enforcement but had promised the resident who was ticketed that he would 
find out why they weren’t warned on a first offense before being issued a citation.  He 
said now he is aware of the city’s zero tolerance stance he can communicate that to his 
constituents.  Mr. Douglas said unleashed dogs are the number one complaint his 
department receives from people who use the trail and he said he appreciates the police 
cracking down on violators with a zero tolerance policy.   
 
There were no additional discretionary items mentioned.   

 
I. Adjournment: 
 

With no further business to come before the Council at this time, Councilor Arnold 
moved to adjourn the meeting.  Councilor Mitchell seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed unanimously.  The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:01 PM.   
 
Approved: May 1, 2012     Attest:  
 
 
 
______________________                                ____________________________ 
Bruce Burrows, Mayor        Ember Herrick, City Recorder  


